
 
Page 1 of 3 

Small Town. Big Charm.   
 

 

Wendell Town Board of Commissioners 
Board Room 

15 E. Fourth Street, Wendell, NC 27591 
Town Board Meeting Agenda 

Monday, April 22, 2019 @ 7:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

• Welcome by Mayor Virginia R. Gray 
 

• Pledge of Allegiance by Tamara Simms student at Wendell Middle School 
 

• Invocation by Wendell Council of Churches 
 
1. ADJUSTMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD [one-hour time limit in total] 
 
The Public Comment Period is your opportunity to share comments with the Town Board on any 
topic as long as it is not an item scheduled for public hearing.  During Public Comment, the 
Town Board receives comments and refrains from speaking.   

 
Thanks to everyone in the audience for respecting the business meeting by abstaining from 
speaking from the audience, applauding speakers, or other actions that distract from the 
meeting.   

 
Anyone wanting to speak during Public Comment Period should do the following: 
• Sign up prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The sign-up period will begin 20 minutes prior 

to the start of the meeting and will end when the meeting begins. 
• When the Public Comment Period is announced, come to the podium and state your name 

and address for the record.   
• Be concise and limit your comments to three minutes or less.  Designate a spokesperson for 

large groups.  Direct comments to the full Town Board and not to an individual Town Board 
member.   

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The Board of Commissioners uses a Consent Agenda to act on non-controversial items 
unanimously recommended for approval or have been discussed at previous meetings.  The 
Consent Agenda is acted upon by one motion and vote of the Board.  Any individual board 
member may pull items from the Consent Agenda for further discussion.  Items pulled will be 
handled with the “OTHER BUSINESS” agenda topic.   
 
3a. Appointment of Megan Howard as Town Clerk and Sherry Scoggins as Deputy 

Town Clerk.   
3b. Schedule public hearing for the Town of Wendell FY 2020 budget on Monday, 

May 13, 2019 at 7 PM.   



 
Page 2 of 3 

Small Town. Big Charm.   
 

3c.   Second reading of a map amendment request to rezone 17 acres located behind 
Industrial Drive, accessed by Church Street (PIN #1784326835; addressed as 0 
Wendell Blvd.) from Manufacturing & Industrial (M&I) to Corridor Mixed Use 
(CMX). [Public hearing and first vote occurred on 4/8/2019; NC GS 160A-75]. 

3d. Approval of temporary street closure of Third Street between Cypress and Pine 
Streets for the Saturday, May 11, 2019 Spring Into the Arts Walk.   

 
4. RECOGNITIONS, REPORTS, AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
4a. Recognition of Wendell Middle School teacher:  Michael Howes 

Speaker:  Mayor Virginia Gray 
 

4b. Introduction of new Town of Wendell employee:  Town Clerk Megan Howard 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
QUASI-JUDICIAL [EVIDENTIARY] PUBLIC HEARINGS - Quasi-judicial hearings are different 
than regular public hearings in that they resemble a court hearing where testimony is presented. 
The Town Board refrains from “ex parte communication” about these cases, as they must make 
a decision based solely on the written and oral evidence actually presented at the hearing itself. 
This means that the Town Board refrains from receiving any information about these cases 
outside the hearing, including emails, phone calls, letters, etc. The Town Board also refrains 
from conducting meetings about these issues outside the hearing.  
These same prohibitions do not apply to staff. Staff welcomes inquiries from the public about 
any of these cases. 
 
Evidentiary (Quasi-Judicial) Hearing Guidelines: 

• Case is announced 
• Town Attorney provides rules of procedure for an evidentiary hearing 

o Disclosure 
• Town Clerk provides oath for persons wishing to present testimony 
• Staff presentation  
• Applicant presentation 
• Opposition presentation 
• Applicant rebuttal 
• Opposition rebuttal 
• Staff closing comments 
• Board inquiry 
• Board called into deliberation 
• Board discussion of the findings of fact: 

o Approve 
o Approve with conditions 
o Deny (must include reason) 

 
5a. EVIDENTIARY HEARING continued from the April 8, 2019, meeting for a special 

use request to construct an 84-unit apartment complex on 17 acres located 
behind Industrial Drive, accessed by Church Street (PIN #1784326835; 



 
Page 3 of 3 

Small Town. Big Charm.   
 

addressed as 0 Wendell Blvd.) [contingent upon approval of Item 3c].   
Speaker:  Planning Director David Bergmark 

 
6. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
6a. Façade Grant request for 1 North Main Street. 

Speaker:  Planning Director David Bergmark 
 
6b. Update on Citizen Advisory Boards.   

Speaker:  Special Assistant to the Manager Scoggins 
 
6c.   Discussion and decision for the lease of the property located at 122 W Second 

Street as a museum by the Wendell Historical Society. 
Speaker:  Town Manager Marc Collins  

 
7. OTHER BUSINESS (any item pulled from the CONSENT AGENDA [item 3 on 

this agenda] will be discussed during this portion of the agenda) 
 
7a. Update on board committee(s) by Town board members: 

 Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization [CAMPO] – Mayor Gray 
 East Wake Senior Center Auxiliary – Commissioner Myrick 

 
8. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS / COMMENTS 
 
9. MAYOR’S REPORTS / COMMENTS 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 
Closed session will be called if necessary.   
 
11. ADJOURN 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item #3a 

 
Item Title: 
 
Appointment of Megan Howard as Town Clerk and Sherry Scoggins as Deputy Town Clerk.   
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Approval.   
 
Item Summary 
 
Friday, April 12, 2019, was Megan’s first day with the Town of Wendell as its Town Clerk.  In 
accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes, Megan took the oath of office as Town 
Clerk.  In turn, Megan provided the oath of office to Sherry to serve as the Town’s Deputy Town 
Clerk.   
 
Attachments: 
 
N/A. 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item #3b 

 
Item Title: 
 
Schedule public hearing for the Town of Wendell FY 2020 budget on Monday, May 13, 2019 at 
7 PM.   
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Approval.   
 
Item Summary 
 
The Wendell Town Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on the FY 2020 on: 
 

Monday, May 13, 2019 at 7 PM 
Wendell Town Hall, 15 E Fourth Street 

 
The purpose of the public hearing is to hear from you – our citizens!  A copy of the proposed 
budget will be available to view beginning Tuesday, April 30th at Town Hall and at the Wendell 
Community Library.   
 
Attachments: 
 

 



Planning/Zoning/Rezonings/2019/ZM19-02 1 

Date:   April 22, 2019              Consent Agenda Item # 3c 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Item Title: 

Zoning Map Amendment request to rezone 17 acres located at 0 Wendell Blvd. (PIN # 
1784326835; behind Industrial Drive) from MI to CMX. 

Report to the Board of Commissioners: 

• Monday, April 22, 2019
• Monday, April 8, 2019

Report to the Planning Board: 

• Monday, March 18, 2019

Specific Action Requested: 

• That the Town Board take action on a map amendment request.
o Action could consist of adopting the attached ordinance for adoption, which

includes a statement of reasonableness and plan consistency.

Petition: 

This rezoning petition was presented to the Board of Commissioners at the April 8th meeting. It 
received a simple majority vote for approval, which necessitated a second reading and vote.  A 
simple majority vote is sufficient to approve the request at the second reading. 

The applicant has requested a change in zoning classification for 17 acres of property located at 0 
Wendell Blvd.  The request area is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the Town 
of Wendell and is zoned MI (Manufacturing & Industrial).  The applicant has submitted a map 
amendment petition to request that this property be given the zoning designation of CMX (Corridor 
Mixed-Use) in order to allow for a potential two-story, 84 unit apartment complex.    

Project Profile: 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 0 Wendell Blvd. 
WAKE COUNTY PIN: 1784326835 
ZONING DISTRICT:  Proposed CMX/ Current MI 
PROPERTY OWNER: Wendell/Larue, LLC 
APPLICANT:  James A. Harrell, III 
PROPERTY SIZE: 17 acres  
CURRENT LAND USE: Vacant  
DESIRED LAND USE: Multi-Family Residential 



Planning/Zoning/Rezonings/2019/ZM19-02 2 

Zoning District: 
 
The property included within this request is currently zoned MI (Manufacturing & Industrial).  The 
MI district is coded to permit the development and operation of light or heavy industrial or flex-
space buildings and uses that are typically too large in scale to fit within a neighborhood 
environment and that should be buffered from surrounding neighborhood uses.  It is intended to 
accommodate the most intense uses in the Town’s code, which could include uses like dry cleaning 
plants, heavy manufacturing, and welding shops.   
 
The applicant has indicated a desire to rezone the property to CMX (Corridor Mixed-Use), with 
the intent of permitting a proposed  two-story, 84 unit apartment complex. The CMX District was 
designed to provide pedestrian-scaled higher density residential and neighborhood-serving 
commercial activities along existing mixed use corridors.  
 
However, the Board should keep in mind that the developer would have the right to pursue any of 
the uses allowed in the CMX zoning district (beyond multi-family).  Many of the adjacent 
properties along Wendell Boulevard are currently zoned CMX.  This property is also adjacent to 
existing residential properties along Industrial Drive.  A copy of those uses allowed in the CMX 
& M&I zoning district is included as Attachment A.  
 
Current Zoning Map & Surrounding Land Uses:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property Outlined in Red 



Planning/Zoning/Rezonings/2019/ZM19-02 3 

 
Public Utilities: 
 
Gravity sewer lines and manholes currently exist on the property and water lines are located 
adjacent to the site. 
 
 
Comprehensive Plan: 
 
The Wendell Comprehensive Plan defines this section as S6 “Infill/Redevelopment Area”.   
 
The Comprehensive Plan describes the S-6 Infill/Redevelopment Sector in the following manner: 
“Existing urban/suburban development with a fairly dense street grid are classified as S-6. This 
includes most of the built-out areas of Wendell around the historic downtown core. These areas 
area already urbanized and well served with infrastructure (roads, utilities, etc.) and access to 
services and amenities. Because these areas are already well provided for in terms of urban 
services, they are the most efficient and most attractive areas for redevelopment of underutilized 
sites or infill of vacant parcels. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan identifies the community types and land uses appropriate for this sector 
as: 

• Neighborhoods 
• Downtowns 
• Single family and Multi-family residential  
• Commercial uses (retail and office) 
• Civic uses (parks, schools, religious and government uses) 
• Light industrial uses 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Planning/Zoning/Rezonings/2019/ZM19-02 4 

Statement of Plan Consistency and Reasonableness  
 

• Any recommended change to the zoning map should be accompanied by a statement 
explaining how the change is consistent with the comprehensive plan, and is reasonable in 
nature.  

o At their March meeting, the Planning Board found the requested zoning map 
amendment to be consistent with the recommended uses outlined in the Wendell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the S-6 Sector and to be reasonable in order to 
provide greater protection to existing, adjacent single family uses from those more 
intense uses allowed in the M&I zoning district.  

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Table of Uses (CMX & M&I zoning districts) 
B. Ordinance for Adoption 

  
 
 
 
 



           Town of Wendell, NC

       Manufacturing & Industrial (M&I) Zoning  District 

Land Use Chart

              PERMITTED USES                PERMITTED WITH SPECIAL USES

       ADDITIONAL STANDARDS     (Requires Board Approval) 

Agriculture Adult Entertainment Airport

ATM Animal Services Colleges/Universities

Business Support Services Cemetery Religious Institutions

Cultural or Community Facility Child/Adult Day Care Center

Equipment Rental     (more than 8 persons)

General Retail ‐ 10,000 sf or less Heavy Equipment/RV/Farm 

Government Services      Equipment/Mobile Home Sales

Laundry, dry cleaning plant Mini‐Warehouses

Manufacturing, Heavy Outdoor Kennels/Equine Facilities

Manufacturing, Light Transit Station ‐ Passenger

Manufacturing, Neighborhood Utilities ‐ Class 1

Media Production Utilities ‐ Class 2

Meeting Facilities Utilities ‐ Class 3

Metal products fabrication, Vehicle Sales

     machine or welding shop Vehicle Services ‐ 

Personal Services       Major Repair/Body Work

Post Office Vehicle Services ‐ 

Professional Services       Minor Maintenance/Repair

Public Safety Station Wireless Telecommunication 

Recreation Facilities, Indoor       Facility ‐ Stealth

Recreation Facilities, Outdoor Wireless Telecommunication 

Research and Development       Facility ‐ Tower

Restaurant

Schools ‐ Vocational/Technical

Storage ‐ Outdoor as a primary use

Storage ‐ Warehouse, indoor storage

Studio ‐ Art, Music

Studio ‐ Dance, Martial Arts

Wholesale Distribution

Attachment A



           Town of Wendell, NC

Corridor Mixed Use (CMX) Zoning  District Land Use Chart

PERMITTED USES PERMITTED WITH SPECIAL USES

       ADDITIONAL STANDARDS  (Requires Board Approval) 

ATM Alcoholic Beverage Sales Store Bar/Tavern/Night Club

Auto Parts Sales Amusements, Indoor Billiard/Pool Hall

Banks, Credit Unions, Financial Amusements, Outdoor Colleges/Universities

   Services Animal Services Dwelling - Multifamily

Bed and Breakfast Inns Car Wash - Stand Alone, Self Service Event Venue, Outdoor

Business Support Services Cemetery Hospital

Community Service Organization Child/Adult Day Care Center Religious Institutions

Cultural or Community Facility     (more than 8 persons) Research and Development

Dwelling-Single Family Child/Adult Day Care Home Residential Treatment Facility

Equipment Rental     (8 or less persons) Shooting Range, Indoor

Funeral Homes Drive Thru Service Theater, Live Performance, Outdoor

General Retail - 10,000 sf or less Drive-Thru Retail/Restaurant Wireless Telecommunication 

General Retail - 10,001 - 50,000 sf Dwelling-Secondary       Facility - Stealth

Government Services Family Care Home (6 or fewer Wireless Telecommunication 

Home Occupation     residents)  Facility - Tower

Hotels/Motels/Inns Gas Station

Housing Services for the Elderly General Retail - Greater than 50,000

Laundry Services Group Care Facility (More than 6

Media Production      residents)

Medical Services - Clinic, Urgent Care Live-Work Units

     Center Manufacturing, Light

Medical Services - Doctor Office Manufacturing, Neighborhood

Meeting Facility/Indoor Event Venue Micro-Distillery/Micro-Brewery/

Metal products fabrication,      Micro-Winery

     machine or welding shop Mini-Warehouses

Personal Services Parking Structure - Primary Use

Post Office Rooming or Boarding House

Professional Services Storage - Warehouse, Indoor Storage

Public Safety Station Transit Station - Passenger

Recreation Facilities, Indoor Utilities - Class 1

Recreation Facilities, Outdoor Utilities - Class 2

Restaurant Vehicle Sales

Schools - Elementary & Secondary Vehicle Services - 

Schools - Vocational/Technical       Major Repair/Body Work

Shopping Center - Community Center Vehicle Services - 

Shopping Center - Neighborhood  Minor Maintenance/Repair

     Center

Studio - Art, Music

Studio - Dance, Martial Arts

Theater, Live Performance, Indoor

Theater, Movie

Attachment A



 

TOWN OF WENDELL NORTH CAROLINA 
 

O-4-2019 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP 
OF THE TOWN OF WENDELL 

 
  

WHEREAS a petition has been filed with the Board of Commissioners of the Town of 
Wendell requesting an amendment to the Zoning Map of the Town of Wendell to include in the 
Corridor Mixed-Use (CMX) zoning district the property described below, said property formerly 
being zoned Manufacturing and Industrial (MI); and 
 
 WHEREAS said property is owned by Wendell/Larue, LLC.; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Planning Board of the Town of Wendell reviewed the proposed change(s) 
and made a recommendation thereupon; and 
 
 WHEREAS notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed change was published in 
accordance with law in the Zebulon Times, a local newspaper, as required by Section 38-717 of the 
Wendell Code of Ordinances and by Section 160A-364 of the General Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS a notice of the proposed zoning classification action was mailed to the owner(s) 
of the parcel(s) of land involved, as shown on the County Tax Listings, and to the owners of all 
parcels of land abutting that (those) parcel(s) of land, as shown on the County Tax Listings, by 
depositing a copy of the same in the United States Mail, first class postage paid, as required by 
Section 38-717 of the Wendell Code of Ordinances and by Section 160A-384 of the General Statutes; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Wendell Board of Commissioners reserves and exercised the right to change 
the existing zoning classification of the area in question or any part or parts thereof to a more 
restrictive general zoning classification without the necessity of withdrawal or modification of the 
petition. 
 
 WHEREAS the said public hearing was actually conducted at 7:00 p.m. on April 8, 2019 in 
the board room at Wendell Town Hall and wherein a reasonable opportunity was given to all those in 
attendance to speak either in favor or against the said change or to make relevant comments: 
 
 THEREFORE, after duly considering the matter, THE TOWN OF WENDELL DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN; 
  
 SECTION 1.  That the Zoning Map of the Town of Wendell is hereby amended to include in 
the Corridor Mixed-Use (CMX) zoning district 17 acres located behind Industrial Drive, accessed by 
Church Street (PIN #1784326835; addressed as 0 Wendell Blvd.). 

Item 3c, Attachment B



 
 SECTION 2. The requested zoning map amendment for the parcel within the rezoning area 
identified as ZM19-02 from MI to CMX is found to be reasonable and consistent with the 
recommended uses and development types outlined in the Wendell Comprehensive Land Use Plan for 
the S6 sector. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That if any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.   
 
 DULY ADOPTED the 22nd Day of April, 2019 
 
 
 
 
(Town Seal) 
        ________________________________  
                 Virginia R. Gray, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST:        APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
 
 
____________________________     _______________________________ 
Sherry L. Scoggins, Town Clerk      James P. Cauley III, Town Attorney 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 3c, Attachment B



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item #3d 

 
Item Title: 
 
Approval of temporary street closure of Third Street between Cypress and Pine Street for the 
Saturday, May 11, 2019 Spring Into the Arts Walk.   
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Approval.   
 
Item Summary 
 
On April 8, 2019, staff presented the venue change for the upcoming Spring Into the Arts Walk 
and street closures.  Third Street was mentioned as a family and kid zone.   
 
For clarity of the requested temporary street closures for the Spring Into the Arts Walk, staff is 
asking the Board of Commissioners for approval of the inclusion of Third Street between 
Cypress and Pine Streets for the Saturday, May 11, 2019 Spring Into the Arts Walk.  This is in 
addition to those temporary closures approved for N. Main Street.   
 
Attachments: 
 

 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item #4a 

 
Item Title: 
 
Recognition of Wendell Middle School teacher:  Michael Howes. 
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Recognition.   
 
Item Summary 
 
Teacher, Michael Howes . Written by Robert Morrison 
 
Mr. Howes has a Bachelor's of Science Degree in Physical Education and Health from James 
Madison University.  After graduation he had a tryout with the New York Jets. He began his 
career teaching elementary school in Orange, Virginia.  There were a couple of stops along the way 
including a tryout with the Washington Redskins.  He moved to our area to be on the staff to open 
Wendell Middle School.  At Wendell Middle Coach Howes has been a jack of all trades.  He has 
been our Athletic Director on two separate occasions and has coached almost every sport we 
offer.  This winter he started an intramural soccer program, this was a huge success as he regularly 
had over 25 students stay after school to play soccer in some very cold weather. 
 
Coach Howes is our morning greeter at the bus loop.  Every student gets a handshake and a "good 
morning" as they depart their bus.  Coach Howes takes a great interest in our students and is a 
preacher of quality character and models all we want our students to be.  His constant message to our 
students is to do the right thing.  No one is a stranger to Coach Howes.  He makes everyone around 
him better. 
 
As Coach Howes enters retirement in June our community will surely miss him.  He has spent his 
entire career working to make the lives of children better.  His constant smile and outgoing character 
also makes our staff better.  If you are between the ages of 11 and 25 in our area there is a good 
chance you know Coach Howes.  He has made our community better.  He plans to continue as a 
soccer referee and spending more time with his grandchildren as he transitions to the retirement 
life.  When asking Mrs. Howes about her husband's retirement she responded, "I hope his retirement 
does not become my full time job!".  We wish him a long and enjoyable retirement, he has earned it!  
 
Attachments: 
 
None 



  1 

Date:  April 22, 2019                         Item # 4b 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item Title: 
 
Introduction of Town Clerk Megan Howard 
 
Report to the Board of Commissioners: 
 
Monday, April 22, 2019 
 
 
Specific Action Requested: 

 
●   Introduction of Town Clerk Megan Howard 
 
 
Item Summary: 
 
Megan Howard joined the Town of Wendell on Friday, April 12.   
 
Megan is a graduate of UNC Chapel Hill with a degree in communications.  Prior to joining the 
Town, Megan was a PR & Marketing Assistant with the Asheville Convention and Visitors 
Bureau.  She also has experience with INDY Week as a News Reporter.   
 
Megan has hit the ground running!  She is working on the Citizen Advisory Board Recruitment.  
She also has an eye for photography and we are looking forward to new photos for our Town’s 
website and social media sites.   
 
 
 
 
 
        
 



 1 

Date:   April 22, 2019                    Item # 5A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item Title: 
 
Evidentiary Hearing on a Special Use request by James A. Harrell, III on behalf of 
Wendell/Larue, LLC for a two-story, 84 unit apartment complex at 0 Wendell Blvd (PIN 
#1784326835; behind Industrial Drive). 
 
Report to the Board of Commissioners: 
 

• Monday, April 22, 2019 
• Monday, April 8, 2019 

 
Specific Action Requested: 

 
● The Board of Commissioners is asked to hold a public hearing and consider taking action 

on a Special Use Permit request for property described herein. 
 
Item Summary: 
 
This item was tabled during the April 8th Board of Commissioners meeting as the rezoning of the 
same parcel was not yet approved, due to a simple majority vote requiring a second vote. 
 
James A. Harrell, III, on behalf of Wendell/Larue, LLC, has requested a Special Use Permit for a 
two-story, 84 unit apartment complex at 0 Wendell Blvd (Behind Industrial Drive). 
  
The proposed special use request would allow for the development of a multi-family apartment 
complex on a portion of a 17 acre tract, located at 0 Wendell Blvd.  The applicant is pursuing tax 
credits for this multi-family project and is seeking to obtain the necessary entitlements to apply 
through the tax credit program. 
 
Town standards normally require that a preliminary plan which has been reviewed by the 
Technical Review Committee (TRC) accompany the Special Use Permit request.  Due to timing 
constraints to meet the Tax Credit application period, the applicant is requesting a variance to 
allow SUP action prior to TRC review and has suggested specific development standards which 
a SUP approval would establish as conditions.  Those conditions are listed within the 
‘Applicant’s Justification’ section on the following page. 
 
All other aspects of the site plan would be subject to TRC review and approval following the 
SUP approval, if approved. 
 
 
Applicant’s Justification: 
 
The applicant’s justification and SUP responses are included within Attachment C.    



 2 

The applicant has asked for 1 variance, as follows: 
 
Variance Requested: Due to timing constraints, we are asking for a variance to allow SUP 
approval in advance of a full preliminary plan being reviewed by the TRC.  As such, we 
understand and agree to the stipulation that the SUP approval would only approve the proposed 
use (multi-family apartments), intensity (in terms of # of units), building height (2 story), and 
proposed exterior building setbacks (25-35 feet).  All other aspects of Site Plan approval will 
occur and be contingent upon the Town’s typical development review procedures (preliminary 
plan and construction documents to be reviewed by the Technical Review Committee for 
conformance with Town standards). 
 
Project Profile: 
  

PROPERTY LOCATION:   0 Wendell Blvd. (Behind Industrial Drive) 
WAKE COUNTY PIN:   1784 32 6835 

 ZONING DISTRICT:   MI currently; Proposed CMX 
PROPERTY SIZE:   17 ac.  

 CURRENT LAND USE:   Vacant 
PROPOSED LAND USE:   Multi-family 

 
PROPERTY OWNER:   Wendell/Larue, LLC  
     9101 Glenwood Avenue 
     Raleigh, NC 27617-7507 
      
APPLICANT:    James A. Harrell, III 
     2600 Fairview Road, Suite 200 
     Raleigh, NC 27608 
      

Existing Zoning Map: 
  

 
 
 



 3 

Zoning District: 
 
This site is located in a Manufacturing and Industrial (MI) Zoning District.  A rezoning request 
to change the zoning district to Corridor Mixed-Use (CMX) has been submitted as well. 
 
 
Off Street Parking: 
 
The parking requirement for residential use is 1 spaces per bedroom, up to 2 per unit. Using this 
standard, the proposed 84 unit apartment complex will require 154 parking spaces.  The 
applicant’s concept map shows 170 new parking spaces.  However, parking design is not being 
approved as part of this Special Use Permit.  The applicant will be required to meet all Wendell 
Parking Standards at the time of preliminary plat approval.   
 
 
Public Utilities: 
 
Gravity sewer lines and manholes currently exist on the property and water lines are located 
adjacent to the site. 
 
 
Buffering: 
 
The applicant has proposed a 35 foot setback along the south property boundary and 25 foot 
setback along the west, north and east property boundaries. The south and west property 
boundaries abut residential uses and would require a Type B Buffer Yard. The applicant plans to 
use existing vegetation along the majority of the western property boundary to act as a buffer. 
Existing or newly planted landscaping that meets Type B Buffer Yard, as outlined in Chapter 8 
of the UDO, will be required along the remainder of the western and southern boundaries that 
abut residential uses.  
 
 
Stormwater Management: 
 
The proposed site changes will require review by Wake County for conformity with the Town’s 
stormwater regulations.  While the concept plan does show a stormwater device, the final 
stormwater plan could vary from what is shown based on review of the Construction Drawings.   
 
 
Staff Comments: 
 

• This property is located within the area designated as the S-6 Section in the Towns’ 
Comprehensive Plan, which is identified as the most efficient and most attract area for 
redevelopment of underutilized sites or infill of vacant parcels.  Thus, a dense residential 
development, due to its proximity to the downtown and existing services, would align 
with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 



 4 

• Staff does have some concerns regarding traffic and access for this site.  Currently this 
parcel is only accessed by the northern extension of Church St (incorrectly labeled ‘East 
street’ on the applicant concept plan).  The UDO would require one additional stub street, 
but that street stub would not have to connect to an existing street at the time of 
development.  Furthermore, this project would not meet the minimum threshold (150 
peak hour trips) to automatically require a Transportation Impact Assessment (TIA) per 
the UDO. 
 
 

Attachments: 
 

A. Section 15.15B2 - When conditional or special uses may be granted.  
B. Type B Buffer requirements 
C. Application – SU19-02 (with the applicant’s responses to SUP questions) 
D. Concept Plan 

 
 



 5 

       Attachment A 
B. General Requirements:  

 

1. Only those uses enumerated as Special Uses in a zoning district shall be authorized 
by the Board of Commissioners. 

 

2. The evaluation and approval of the Special Use Permit shall be governed by quasi-
judicial proceedings, which are based upon the sworn testimony and evidence 
presented at the hearing relevant to the following standards: 

 
a. That the proposed use does not affect adversely the general plans for the 

physical development of the town as embodied in this Ordinance and in 
any plan or portion thereof adopted by the Board of Commissioners; 
 

b. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purposes stated for these 
regulations; 
 

c. The proposed use will not adversely affect the health and safety of residents 
and workers in the town; 
 

d. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use of development of 
adjacent properties or other neighborhood uses; 
 

e. The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the existing uses; 
 

f. The proposed use will be placed on a lot of sufficient size to satisfy the 
space requirements of the use; 
 

g. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard because of the 
number of persons who will attend or use the facility, vehicular movement, 
noise, or fume generation or type of physical activity; 
 

h. The standards set forth for each particular use for which a permit may be 
granted have been met; 
 

i. The Board may impose or require such additional restrictions and 
conditions as may be necessary to protect the health and safety of works 
and residents in the community, and to protect the value and use of 
property in the general neighborhood; 
 

j. The proposed use shall be subject to the minimum area, setback, and other 
location requirements of the zoning district in which it will be located; and 
 

k. The proposed use shall be subject to the off-street parking and service 
requirements of these regulations. 
 

l. Wherever the Board shall find, in the case of any permit granted pursuant 
to the provisions of this chapter, that any of the terms, conditions, or 
restrictions, on which such permit was granted are not being complied, the 
Board shall rescind and revoke the permit after giving due notice to all 
parties concerned and granting full opportunity for a public hearing.  



 6 

Attachment B 
 

 
 

 

 



 7 

 

 
 



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment D

Coleen Miller
Text Box
WENDELL PLACE APARTMENTSCONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

Coleen Miller
Text Box
NOTE: Due to timing constraints, we are asking for a variance to allow SUP approval in advance of a full preliminary plan being reviewed by the TRC.  As such, we understand and agree to the stipulation that the SUP approval would only approve the proposed use (multi-family apartments), intensity (in terms of # of units), building height (2 story), and proposed exterior building setbacks (25-35 feet).  All other aspects of Site Plan approval will occur and be contingent upon the Town's typical development review procedures (preliminary plan and construction documents to be reviewed by the Technical Review Committee for conformance with Town standards).



 1 

Date:   April 22, 2019                                                                         Item #6A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item Title: 
 
Façade Grant request for 1 North Main Street. 
 
Board of Commissioners Meeting: 
 
Monday, April 22, 2019 
 
Appearance Commission Meeting:  
 
Monday, April 1, 2019 
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 

• The Town Board is requested to review and take action on the expanded downtown façade 
grant application for 1 N. Main Street, Wendell, NC 27591.  

o Action could consist of approving or denying façade grant application 

 
Item Summary: 
 
On January 11, 2019, an application was submitted to the Town of Wendell Planning Department 
by property owner Sigurd Westerlund for the expanded downtown façade grant program, in the 
amount of $45,000. The application includes the removal of the existing metal siding on the corner 
building located at 1 N Main Street, as well as comprehensive exterior renovations to restore the 
building to its former appearance. The property is located in the center of the Downtown Mixed-
Use (DMX) zone at the corner of Main Street and Third Street. 
 
The proposed exterior renovations include window replacement, new decorative cornice, masonry 
repair, and new exterior lighting fixtures.  Quotes for all work beneath the metal paneling could 
not be obtained until the paneling was removed.  The applicant is also performing extensive 
additional building renovations to make the space commercially available, but the items below 
represent those costs which are eligible for façade grant funds. 
  
The total estimated cost for exterior façade improvements is $103,327, broken down as follows: 
 

• Removal of existing metal paneling/siding:   $4000 

• Replacement of all exterior windows and doors:  $38,350 

• Cornice replacement & Installation:    $25,512.52 

• Masonry Repair:      $34,000 

• Outdoor Lighting:      $1464.74 

 

 



 2 

The amount applied for by the applicant for the expanded downtown façade grant program is 
$45,000. The eligible grant amount is dependent upon the availability of façade grant match funds, 
based on 50-50 match.  The total match provided by the Town for all expanded façade grants 
approved through June 1, 2019 may not exceed $45,000.  The $45,000 figure represents the 
balance of the $50,000 the Town received from NC Commerce to be used for downtown 
revitalization projects.   
 
These matching funds may be applied towards a single grant request, or multiple requests, at the 
sole discretion of the Town Board.  Grant approvals in excess of $10,000 shall be reserved for 
prominent downtown projects which will result in significant increased property valuation, job 
development, or substantial aesthetic improvements in a prominent location.  
 
The project includes eligible improvements and was deemed complete with project costs indicated 
and project details provided. The applicant has begun work, which is permitted under the program 
guidelines. 
 
Pictures of the existing façade (prior to removal of the metal paneling) and the proposed façade 
(based on historic photos of the building) are provided on the following page. 
 
 
Staff Comments: 
 

• In Staff’s opinion, the proposed project meets the qualifications to exceed a $10,000 grant award, 

as it includes substantial aesthetic improvements in a prominent downtown location and will 

result in increased property valuation. 

• This request represents the only application the Town has received for the expanded façade grant 

program.  In order to ensure that all State Funding is put to use, the Town’s Expanded Downtown 

Façade Grant program has an open application period through June 1, 2019. 

 
 Appearance Commission Recommendation: 
 

• At their April meeting, the Wendell Appearance Commission unanimously recommended 

approval of the expanded façade grant request, in the full amount ($45,000). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

Existing Façade (Prior to Removal of metal paneling): 
 

 
 
 
Proposed (to restore the building back to its historic/traditional façade) 
 
 

 
 
Attachment:  
 

A. Downtown Façade Grant Program Application – 1 N Main St 

B. Proposed Outdoor Lighting Fixtured 







 4 

 
 

Attachment B: Proposed Lighting 



  1 

Date:  April 22, 2019                         Item # 6b 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item Title: 
 
Update on Citizen Advisory Board.   
 
Report to the Board of Commissioners: 
 
Monday, April 22, 2019 
 
Specific Action Requested: 

 
Review of the applications received.  Action may be taken at the May 13, 2019 meeting.   
 
Item Summary: 
 
The following Town of Wendell citizen advisory boards have vacancies: 

• Planning Board – 1 in-town member and 1 ETJ member [both terms expire June 2020] 
• Tree Board – 2 members [one term expires June 2020; one term expires June 2021] 
• Appearance Commission – 1 member [term expires June 2020] 

 
Citizen advisory boards in Wendell are very active!  A notice of the vacancies was posted on the 
Town’s website, social media sites and with local media.   
 

 
 



  2 

Applicants requesting consideration for a citizen advisory board would complete the unexpired 
term.  Terms begin on July 1 and end June 30.   
 
Town of Wendell continues to be in need of volunteers to serve on citizen advisory boards.   
 
Open recruitment for citizen advisory boards launches Tuesday, April 23, 2019 and wraps up on 
Thursday, May 23, 2019.  Citizens may visit the Town’s website – www.townofwendell.com – 
for an overview of what each citizen advisory board does for the Town of Wendell and an 
application.  Applications may be returned to Town Hall, 15 E Fourth Street, Wendell, Attention 
Town Clerk Megan Howard or remitted via email to mhoward@townofwendell.com 
        
Attachment: 
 

A. Applications from the following persons: 
• Brett Hennington – Planning Board [in-town] 
• Michael Firstbrook – Planning Board [in-town] 
• Jimmena Huffman-Hall – Planning Board [in-town] 
• Levin Jones – Planning Board [in-town] 
• Regina Harmon – Planning Board [ETJ] 

 

http://www.townofwendell.com/
mailto:mhoward@townofwendell.com


Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 





Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



Item 6b, Attachment A 
 



 1 

Date:  April 22, 2019                                                 Item #6C 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item Title: 
 
Lease of 122 Second Street to the Wendell Historical Society, LLC for use as a Museum 
 
Report to the Board of Commissioners: 
 
Monday, April 22, 2019 
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Approve the Lease of 122 Second Street to the Wendell Historical Society, LLC for a five (5) 
year term with three (3) successive five (5) year terms with an annual rent of $1.00.   
 
Item Summary: 
The Wendell Historical Society, LLC (WHS) requests to lease the Town owned structure at 122 
Second Street for the purpose of establishing and operating a historic museum with typical 
accessory uses to promote the history of Wendell.  
 
The Town purchased the property in January 2019 and recombined the lot with the remainder of 
the block already in the ownership of the Town. While the purchase and sale agreement is no 
longer in force, the Commission requested staff to negotiate a lease with the WHS for the use as 
a public museum. The Town Attorney provided base lease document and staff drafted the initial 
document. The draft lease was provided to WHS for review and two rounds of edits were made. 
 
A summary of the lease document is as follows: 
 

• The lease is effectively a 20-year lease with rent set for $1 per year. 
 

• The WHS accepts the structure as-is for establishing and operating a public museum. And 
may operate a gift shop and/or use the premises for fund raising. 

 
• The WHS will provide an annual maintenance plan and proof of regular maintenance to 

the Town for review. The WHS is responsible for all repairs and maintenance. 
 

• The WHS is responsible for all utilities, mowing, and services for the premises and keep 
the property in a good, clean, and sanitary condition. 

 
• Any alterations or improvements to the premises are the responsibility of WHS with prior 

approval by the Town Manager and a right to appeal to the Town Commission. 
 

• The WHS is required to maintain insurance for the property and name the Town as an 
additional insured.  

 



 2 

• Early termination of the lease is permitted by either party in writing at least 120 days in 
advance of the termination of the lease. The WHS has three (3) options in such an event 
beyond just leaving the premises; (1) offer to purchase the premises at the price the Town 
expended; (2) relocate the structure to another site at WHS expense; or (3) participate in 
an agreement for an alternative public use of the property.  

 
• The WHS may not occupy the premises until the terms of the lease are met (i.e. have 

plans for renovations, use, landscaping approved and insurance in place). 
 

• The WHS must obtain all permits and maintain compliance with the law and lease. 
Annual reports demonstrating compliance will be provided to the Town Manager. 
 

• The Town retains ownership of the premises with the ability to consider other uses in the 
future as needed. 
 

Staff recommends that the commission approve the Lease of the 122 Second Street premises to 
the Wendell Historical Society. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Proposed lease for 122 Second Street 



 

CP Lse02262018 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WAKE COUNTY 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS LEASE, made this ___ day of April, 2019 by and between the Town of Wendell, 
Wake County, North Carolina, a municipal corporation created and existing under the laws of the 
State of North Carolina (“Lessor”) and Wendell Historical Society, Inc. (“Lessee”): 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, the 
Lessor and Lessee do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1) DEMISED PREMISES. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from 
Lessor for the term and upon all the conditions set forth herein that certain parcel and building 
located at 122 W Second Street (the “Premises”). 

2) TERM; RENEWAL. The term of the Lease shall commence on the 1st day of May, 
2019 and terminate on May 1, 2024, unless terminated earlier as provided for herein.  The Lease 
shall automatically renew without further notice on the termination date for three (3) successive 
five-year terms upon the same terms and conditions provided for herein unless the lease is 
terminated as provided for in Section 14 or by default.  

3) RENT.  During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall pay to Lessor as rent for the 
use of the Premises the sum of one and No/100 Dollars ($1.00) per year payable on July 1, 2019 
or the first business day thereafter for each subsequent year the lease is in force. 

4) CONDITION OF PREMISES. Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has inspected 
the Premises and agrees that the Premises and any common areas used in connection therewith are 
in a safe, fit and habitable condition. Lessee agrees to keep the Premises in a clean and sanitary 
condition and at termination the Premises will be surrendered to Lessor in at least as good a 
condition as Lessee received the Premises at the commencement of this Lease. Lessee also 
acknowledges that no representation as to the condition or state of repair of the Premises has been 
made. Lessor expressly disclaims and makes no claims or representations as to the fitness of 
the Premises for Lessee’s purposes or intended use. Lessor leases the Premises to Lessee in 
an “as is condition” and makes no representations, express or implied, that the Premises is 
suitable for the use permitted by this Lease, or any other use. 

5) USE; QUIET ENJOYMENT. 

a) During the term of this Lease, and any renewal hereof, Lessee shall use the 
Premises solely as a historic museum and its customary accessory uses. Lessee 
shall not use the premises for the sale of any products or goods, other than a 
museum gift shop and fundraising activities, unless agreed to in writing by 
Lessor.  Any other use of the Premises must be authorized in writing by Lessor. 
The definition of “customary accessory uses” shall be defined at the sole 
discretion of the Lessor. 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

b) Lessee further agrees that it will use the Premises in compliance with all 
applicable Town, County, State, and Federal laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations. 

c) Lessor covenants and warrants that Lessor is the true and lawful owner of the 
Demised Premises and has good right and full power to let and lease the same. 
Lessor agrees that Lessee shall quietly and peaceably hold, possess and enjoy 
the Demised Premises for the full term of this lease, without any hindrance or 
molestation from Lessor or any person claiming by, through or under Lessor, 
and Lessor will defend the title to the Premises and the use and occupancy of 
the same by Lessee against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever, except 
those claiming by or through Lessee. 

6) REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND UTILITIES. 

a) Lessee shall provide to the Lessor an annual maintenance plan no later than 
December 1 for proposed work for the subsequent calendar year for each year 
the lease is in force. The plan shall at a minimum provide for the maintenance 
of the Premises as provided for herein and is subject to the review and approval 
of the Lessor. Further, the Lessee shall provide for an annual maintenance 
inspection and pest inspection of the Premises by professionals approved by the 
Lessor. The results of the annual inspections shall be provided to the Lessor 
with the annual maintenance plan. Any unscheduled or unplanned maintenance 
shall be completed consistent the terms and conditions on Section 6. 

b) All repairs and maintenance shall be the sole cost, expense, and responsibility 
of Lessee. Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for any repairs made by Lessor as a 
result of damage caused to the Premises by Lessee, its invitees, licensees, 
agents, employees or contractors. Any such costs incurred by Lessor shall be 
immediately due and owing as additional costs under this Lease. If any such 
costs are not paid by Lessee within thirty (30) days written notice to Lessee, 
such non-payment shall constitute a Default. 

c) Lessee shall at all times keep the Premises clean and orderly and maintain the 
same in good, clean and sanitary condition.  Lessee shall be responsible for 
providing janitorial and cleaning services for the interior of the Premises.  
Lessee shall provide immediate written notice to Lessor of any defects, 
damages or necessary maintenance and repairs required to be completed at the 
Premises. 

d) Lessee shall pay the costs of all trash, electric, water and sewer furnished to the 
Premises throughout the Term of the Lease.  Lessee shall cause to be maintained 
trash, electricity, water and sewer utilities during and throughout the Term of 
the Lease. Further, the Lessee is responsible for mowing the area of the original 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

Premises purchased by the Town unless other provisions are made and agreed 
to by both Parties. 
 

e) Lessee shall pay all costs for the use of natural gas and any other required utility 
service to the Premises.  

7) ALTERATIONS; IMPROVEMENTS; TRADE FIXTURES. 

a) Lessee shall not make any alterations or improvements to the Premises without 
Lessor's prior written consent, which shall not unreasonably be withheld.  Any 
permanent additions to, or improvements upon the Premises, made by Lessee 
shall become the property of Lessor at the expiration of the Lease Term except 
trade fixtures, furnishings and equipment as herein provided. 
 

b) Lessee's personal property and its trade fixtures, including machinery, 
equipment, and furnishings, shall remain the property of Lessee and may be 
removed by Lessee. Any personal property, trade fixtures, alterations, 
improvements or additions not removed by Lessee within Thirty (30) days after 
the termination of this Lease or any extension thereof, shall automatically 
become the property of Lessor. Lessee shall repair any damage to the Premises 
caused by Lessee's removal of its personal property, trade fixtures, alterations, 
improvements, or additions, but Lessee shall have no obligation to remove such 
items from the Premises at any time. 

8) MECHANICS LIENS. Lessor and Lessee agree to keep the Premises free from 
any and all claims of persons or firms or corporations, who at the request of Lessor or Lessee or 
their employees or contractor, furnish labor or materials to or for the benefit of the Premises and 
Lessor and Lessee further agree to hold each other harmless from any and all claims arising out of 
such claims. 

9) DAMAGE; CASUALTY. If the Premises is partially damaged or destroyed by 
fire or other casualty so that the same can be reasonably repaired, the Lessee shall repair and restore 
the Premises to a good tenable condition within 180 days. This repair period may be extended by 
mutual agreement. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this subparagraph, Lessee shall be responsible 
for repair and restoration of Lessee's trade fixtures and personal property located in or on the 
Premises in the event of damage or destruction of said property. 

10) INSURANCE. 

a) Public Liability. During the term of this lease, Lessee shall: (1) Lessee shall 
maintain, at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive general liability policies 
including coverage of contractual liability as respects this Lease, providing a 
single limit of liability of not less than $100,000.00 per occurrence. Lessee shall 
furnish a certificate of insurance evidencing the aforesaid coverage prior to 
occupying the Premises and subsequently upon Lessor's written request. Lessor 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

shall be named in any such policy as an additional insured. The Lessee shall 
notify the Lessor immediately upon the termination, suspension, or revision of 
the insurance policies for the Premises. 

b) Personal Property. The Lessee shall be responsible for carrying its own 
insurance upon the trade fixtures, furniture, equipment, books, supplies and 
other personal property belonging to the Lessee located in the building. 

11) SIGNS.  Any and all signs or advertisement of any nature extending into, on, or 
located over the Premises, shall conform to all Town of Wendell, North Carolina zoning and 
building codes and shall be approved by Lessor in writing prior to construction, use, or erection 
thereof. Approval by Lessor shall not be unreasonably withheld, as to location, graphics, type, 
content, architectural or engineering standards. 

12) TAXES.  Lessor shall pay when due any taxes or special assessment charged of 
any kind or character pertaining to the Premises and all Improvements thereon or therein.  Lessee 
shall reimburse the Lessor for all taxes incurred as a result of the use of the Premises by the Lessee. 
Lessee shall pay all taxes levied upon Lessee's trade fixtures, and all other personal property of 
Lessee contained in the Premises. Lessor acknowledges and agrees that only taxes and fees actually 
incurred will be charged to the Lessee. 

13) TERMINATION.  Lessee shall vacate the Premises on or before the termination 
date and shall leave the Premises in good, clean and orderly condition. Upon the termination of 
the Lease, Lessee shall provide all keys to the Premises and any and all security codes for the same. 

14) EARLY TERMINATION. During the term of this Lease, either Party may 
determine the need to use the premises for an alternative public purpose. In such an event, the 
either Party shall provide written notice to the other Party at least 120 days in advance of the early 
termination of the lease. The Lessee shall vacate the premises on or before the early termination 
date consistent with Section 13. 

a) The Lessor may offer the Lessee the structure on the Premises at no cost for 
relocation to another suitable site. All costs of relocation, including the property 
to receive the structure, are the sole responsibility of the Lessee. 

b) The Lessee may offer the Lessor compensation to purchase the Premises for an 
amount not to exceed the original purchase cost of the Premises by the Lessor 
within 120 days of receiving the notice of early termination of the lease. 

c) The Lessee may offer the Lessor compensation to participate in the proposed 
alternative public use of the Premises by the Lessor. The terms and conditions 
of participation in the proposed alternative public use will be established by the 
mutual agreement of the parties.   

15)  CONDITIONS TO OCCUPY PREMISES. The Lessee shall comply with all 
applicable conditions herein prior to the occupation of the premises for the proposed use as a public 
museum. Until such time the conditions are met by the Lessee to the satisfaction of the Lessor, 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

access to the Premises shall be in coordination with and accompanied by the designated agent 
agent of the Lessor. 

16) COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. During the term of this Lease and any renewals 
hereof, Lessee shall promptly execute and comply with all ordinances of the Town of Wendell, 
North Carolina, and all Federal, State, County and Town statutes, ordinances, regulations, laws or 
other requirements concerning environmental protection, or other matter applicable to the 
occupancy of or operation in the Premises. 

17) REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. The Lessee shall provide all written 
requirements, reports, and proof of compliance as provided for in this Lease to the Town Manager 
for review and a determination of compliance and approval to proceed. The Lessee may appeal the 
decision of the Town Manager to the Town of Wendell Board of Commissioners for a final 
decision. 

18) DEFAULT/REMEDIES: 

a) Lessee. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events constitutes 
a material default and breach of this Lease by Lessee and the Lease shall 
terminate automatically upon such occurrence: 

i. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of rent or any other payment 
required to be made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where the 
failure continues for a period of Five (5) days after the due date. 

ii. The failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the covenants, 
conditions, or provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by 
Lessee, other than those described in subparagraph (i) above and Lessee 
fails to cure such default within fifteen (15) days of notice thereof. 

iii. Any attempt by Lessee to make any general assignment of this Lease, 
conveyance of any interest in the Premises or general arrangement for 
an interest in the Premises for the benefit of creditors. 

iv. The filing by Lessee of a petition to have Lessee adjudged bankrupt; the 
judicial declaration of Lessee as bankrupt; or the appointment of a 
trustee or receiver to take possession substantially all Lessee's assets 
located at the Premises or of Lessee's interest in this Lease. 

 
b) Lessor.  Lessor shall not be in default unless Lessor fails to perform obligations 

required of it within a reasonable time, but in no event later than Thirty (30) 
days after written notice by Lessee to Lessor, provided that if the nature of 
Lessor's obligation is such that more than Thirty (30) days are reasonably 
required for performance, then Lessor shall not be in default if Lessor 
commences performance within the Thirty (30) day period and thereafter 
diligently completes performance. If Lessor defaults in the performance of any 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

of the obligations or conditions required to be performed by Lessor under this 
Lease, Lessee may, after giving notice as provided above, either cure the default 
and deduct the cost thereof from the rent subsequently becoming due hereunder, 
or elect to terminate this Lease upon giving Seven (7) days written notice to 
Lessor of its intention to do so. In that event, this Lease shall terminate upon 
the date specified in the notice, unless Lessor has meanwhile cured the default. 

19) CONDEMNATION. If all or any portion of the Premises or a substantial portion 
thereof is taken under the power of eminent domain, sold under the threat of the exercise of said 
power, or disposed of to satisfy federal requirements (all of which are herein called 
"condemnation"), this Lease shall automatically terminate as of the date the condemning authority 
takes title or possession, whichever occurs first.  

20) RIGHT OF ENTRY. Lessor reserves the right to enter into the Premises or to have 
its agents, employees or subcontractors enter into the demised premises at reasonable times for the 
purpose of making repairs and maintenance required by the Lessors under this lease and for the 
purpose of exhibiting the same to others.  Such right of entry shall not be exercised in such a 
manner as to unreasonably interfere with the Lessee's exclusive use of the demised premises and 
the Lessor, its agents, employees, and subcontractors shall respect the relationship existing 
between Lessee and its clients. Lessor may enter the Premises at any time without advance notice 
when there is a reasonable cause to believe that an emergency exists and to repair or remedy the 
same. 

21) NO WAIVER. No waiver of any breach of any covenant, condition or stipulation 
hereunder shall be taken to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of the same covenant, condition 
or stipulation. 

22) GOVERNING LAW. The Parties agree that this Lease is to be governed and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina and that the courts of North 
Carolina shall have exclusive jurisdiction  over any disputes as to the terms of this Lease. By the 
signatures below, the parties consent to the exclusive, personal jurisdiction by the courts of North 
Carolina and further, waive any objection thereto. Venue shall be Wake County Superior Court, 
North Carolina. 

23) ABANDONMENT. If Lessee shall abandon and vacate the Premises before the 
end of the term of this lease for any period longer than Fifteen (15) days, Lessor may without 
notice, at Lessor's option, enter the Premises, remove any remaining personal property of Lessee 
therefrom and relet the same as Lessor shall see fit and this Lease shall thereby be terminated. 

24) SEVERANCE. If any part or paragraph of this Lease is found void or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected by that finding. 

25) INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee expressly agrees that, to the extent this provision 
is permissible under existing law, Lessee will indemnify and hold Lessor harmless from and 
against any and all loss, cost, damage, liability or expense, including, but not limited to  attorney's 
fees incurred by Lessor:  (a) in defending any complaint, charge or claim filed against Lessor with 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

any court, or local, state or federal agency by Lessee or any third party in regards to Lessees acts, 
omissions and use of the Premises; (b) arising out of any breach of this Lease by Lessee; or (c) 
arising out of the fact that any representation made herein by Lessee was false when made. 

26) ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLEASES.  Lessee shall not assign or sublet in whole 
or in part any portion of the demised Premises. 

27) BINDING EFFECT. This Lease shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their 
heirs, personal representatives, administrators, successors and assigns. 

28) SUBORDINATION. Lessee hereby acknowledges that a Lender may, from time-
to-time, loan money to the Lessor which may be secured with a deed of trust on the Premises. 
Lessee hereby subordinates its interest in the Premises to the lien of such Lender, as its interest 
may appear, because of said deed of trust to be executed.  Lessee further agrees to execute such 
other documents as may be necessary in order to cause said deed of trust to be a superior lien to 
the lease on the Premises herein demised.  Upon the request of the Lessor or any institution, bank 
or savings and loan making a loan to Lessor, Lessee agrees to subordinate this Lease to any other 
mortgage and/or deed of trust now or hereafter affecting the demised Premises. 

29) SURRENDER. Lessee agrees to take good care of the Premises and to commit no 
waste and suffer no injury to be done to the same, and to return the possession of the same to 
Lessor at the expiration of the term, in as good of condition as at the commencement of this Lease.
  

30) COVENANTS AGAINST DISCRIMINATION. Lessee agrees for itself, its 
heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that 
there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on account 
of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, marital status or ancestry, in the leasing, 
subleasing, transferring, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Premises herein leased, nor 
shall Lessee itself, or any person claiming under or through Lessee, establish or permit any such 
practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, 
number, use, occupancy of Lessees, sublessees or vendors in the Premises here leased. 

31) NOTICES. All notices and other communications contemplated shall be in writing 
and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or received by mail and shall be personally 
delivered or mailed by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, with postage and fees paid as 
follows: 

Lessor:  Town of Wendell 
  c/o Town Manager 
  15 E Fourth Street 
  Wendell, NC 27591 

 
 
 
 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

Lessee:  Wendell Historical Society 
  c/o Wendell Historical Museum Director 
  P.O. Box 980 
  114 N. Main Street 
  Wendell, NC 27591 
 

32) ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  All preliminary and contemporaneous agreements and 
understandings are merged and incorporated into this Lease which contains the entire agreement 
between the parties. This Lease may not be modified or amended in any manner except by an 
instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto. 

33) MISCELLANEOUS. 

a) Attachments, Heading, Terms. All attachments referred to herein are hereby 
incorporated by reference into this Lease. The headings contained herein are for 
convenience purposes only and shall not be used to interpret nor be deemed to 
extend or limit the specific section. The work or words enclosed in quotation 
marks shall be construed as defined terms for purposes of this agreement. The 
terms "Lessor" and "Lessee" shall be construed to mean, when required by the 
context, the directors, officers, employees, invitees, contractors, material men, 
servants and agents of Lessor and Lessee. 

b) Execution and Delivery. This Lease shall not be binding nor confer any rights 
upon either party unless and until executed and mutually delivered by and 
between both parties. 
 

c) Relationship of Parties. This Lease does not create the relationship of principal 
and agent or a partnership of joint venture, or of any association other than that 
of Lessor and Lessee. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed or caused this instrument to 
be executed as of the day and year first above written. 

 
{Signature Page to Follow} 

 
 
 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6c, Attachment A



 

CP Lse02262018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       LESSEE: 
        
 
 
 
 
       By:______________________________ 
             
 
 
 
 
 

LESSOR: 
        

Town of Wendell 
 
 
 
 
       By:______________________________ 
             Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Page – 122 W Second Street Lease  

Item 6c, Attachment A



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item # 7a 

 

 

Item Title: 

Update on board committee(s) by Town Board members.   

 

Specific Action Requested: 

None  

 

Attachments: 
 
None 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item # 8 

 

 

Item Title: 

Commissioners’ Reports. 

 

Specific Action Requested: 

None  

 

Attachments: 
 
None 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item # 9 

 

 

Item Title: 

Mayor’s Report. 

 

Specific Action Requested: 

None  

 

Attachments: 
 
None 



Date:  April 22, 2019        Item # 10 

 

Item Title: 
 
Closed Session [NC GS 143-318.11]. 
 
Specific Action Requested: 
 
Will be called if necessary for one or more of the following within NC GS 143-318.11(a): 
 
(1)        To prevent the disclosure of information that is privileged or confidential pursuant to the 
law of this State or of the United States, or not considered a public record within the meaning of 
Chapter 132 of the General Statutes. 
 
(2)        To prevent the premature disclosure of an honorary degree, scholarship, prize, or similar 
award. 
 
(3)        To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve 
the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby 
acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing 
herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be 
open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The 
public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or 
settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. If the 
public body has approved or considered a settlement, other than a malpractice settlement by or 
on behalf of a hospital, in closed session, the terms of that settlement shall be reported to the 
public body and entered into its minutes as soon as possible within a reasonable time after the 
settlement is concluded. 
 
(4)        To discuss matters relating to the location or expansion of industries or other businesses 
in the area served by the public body, including agreement on a tentative list of economic 
development incentives that may be offered by the public body in negotiations, or to discuss 
matters relating to military installation closure or realignment. Any action approving the signing 
of an economic development contract or commitment, or the action authorizing the payment of 
economic development expenditures, shall be taken in an open session. 
 
(5)        To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating agents concerning the 
position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price and other 
material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by purchase, 
option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the amount of compensation and other material terms of an 
employment contract or proposed employment contract. 
 
(6)        To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or 
prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 



grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee. General personnel policy issues 
may not be considered in a closed session. A public body may not consider the qualifications, 
competence, performance, character, fitness, appointment, or removal of a member of the public 
body or another body and may not consider or fill a vacancy among its own membership except 
in an open meeting. Final action making an appointment or discharge or removal by a public 
body having final authority for the appointment or discharge or removal shall be taken in an open 
meeting. 
 
(7)        To plan, conduct, or hear reports concerning investigations of alleged criminal 
misconduct. 
 
(8)        To formulate plans by a local board of education relating to emergency response to 
incidents of school violence or to formulate and adopt the school safety components of school 
improvement plans by a local board of education or a school improvement team. 
 
(9)        To discuss and take action regarding plans to protect public safety as it relates to existing 
or potential terrorist activity and to receive briefings by staff members, legal counsel, or law 
enforcement or emergency service officials concerning actions taken or to be taken to respond to 
such activity. 
 
(10)      To view a recording released pursuant to G.S. 132-1.4A. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 


	4/22/19 Agenda
	Page 1
	Page 2 
	Page 3

	Item 3a
	Item 3b
	Item 3c
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	Item 3d
	Item 4a
	Item 4b
	Item 5a
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	Item 6a
	Item 6b
	Attachment A

	Item 6c
	Attachment A

	Item 7a
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10



